
 

 

      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., July 11, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. ROLL CALL 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 1st Printing – Monday, July 03, 2023 
 2nd Printing – Sunday, July 09, 2023 
 
III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – June 20, 2023   

 

                                                                                                                   PAGE (S)                                                        

IV.     NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution No. FY2023-017 .…………………………………………………………         1   

Resolution commending Ms. Betty C. Bamba, Housing Specialist  

  Supervisor for her dedication and contributions to the Guam Housing 

  and Urban Renewal Authority 

2.    Resolution No. FY2023-018………………………………………………………….        2 - 19 

   Resolution to create and approve positions in the Public Housing,  

   Section 8 and Procurement Divisions 

3. Resolution No. FY2023-019 .………………………………………………………..      20 - 24   

Resolution to approve the amendment of position for the Property 

    Site Manager 

4. Resolution No. FY2023-020 .…………………………………………………               25 - 51 

Resolution approving the Annual PHA Plan (FY2024) 

5. Intent to Award ……………………………………………………………………………     52 - 55        

IFB#GHURA-23-13-MOD; Renovation of Eight (8) Guma Trankilidat 

Units 

6.    Intent to Award ……………………………………………………………………………          56    

   RFQ#GHURA-12-14-22; Legal Services 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Intent to Award ……………………………………………………………………….........   57 - 61           

       IFB#GHURA-23-14-MOD7-AMP4; Renovation of Seven (7) AMP4 Units 

2. Change Order #1 ……………………………………………………………………………   62 - 64       

       IFB#GHURA-08-25-2022-AMP4; Replacement of AMP4 Maintenance 

Shop Extension 

 



 

 

3.    Change Order #2 …………………………………………………………………………….       

  IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of a Lighthouse Recovery 

Center for Women in Tiyan, Guam 

 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1.  Project Updates 

2. Division Updates    

                                                                                                                               

 VII.   GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. HR Item: Executive Management’s Performance Evaluations for: ……..   65 - 77 

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli, due on or before 

July 08, 2023 (Annual Evaluation)  

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves, due on or before 

July 28, 2023 (Annual Evaluation) 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting:  Tuesday, July 25, 2023 

      @ 12:00 p.m.  

 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 



1
6

M
o
n
d
a
y,

 J
u
ly

  
3
, 
2
0
2
3
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T

h
e

 P
a

c
if

ic
 D

a
il

y
 N

e
w

s
g

u
a

m
p

d
n

.c
o

m

example (competing in 
other challenging fitness 
and combative events) and 
through community in-
volvement (donation of 
time or resources). In fact, 
he announced in New Zea-
land that he will be donat-
ing all his fight purse to the 
recovery efforts of Typhoon 
Mawar.

GSPN caught up with the 
36-year-old to get some of 
his thoughts fresh off his 
announcement.
GSPN: When did you 

really know this would be 
your last fight?
JJ: About a month ago, 

when I was packing up, my 
daughter Isabella saw my 
suitcase and said “daddy go 
airplane?” My heart sank. 
I had to walk away to hide 
the tears. I knew this would 
be my last fight right then 
and there.
GSPN: What would you 

say is the biggest lesson 
learned from the sport of 
MMA?
JJ: “This too shall pass”. 

MMA has given me the 
highest highs and the low-
est lows. Nothing beats that 
feeling right after the sun, 
surrounded by friends and 
family, eating a delicious 
meal. And then the loss, 
alone in the locker room, 
no one knowing what to 
say to you, trying to figure 
out what went wrong. In 
the end, the wins and the 
losses don’t matter, it’s the 
life you’ve lived. I’ve trav-
eled the world and went 
further in this game than I 
ever imagined when I start-
ed this journey.
GSPN: What, if any-

thing, would you have done 
differently in your MMA 
career?
JJ: I would have believed 

in myself more. There was 
a lot of self doubt that 
plagued me in the middle 
of my career, and I really 
had to battle the demons so 

to speak, to get through it. 
But it made me who I am 
today, and I’m happy to 
have left on a high note.
GSPN: Most memorable 

or favorite fight and why?
JJ: All of the fights have 

a special place in my heart. 
I think fighting Dylan Fus-
sel at the UOG Calvo Field 
House in PXC (55, 2016) 
would be the most mem-
orable. He dropped me in 

the first 30 seconds with a 
straight left hand, had to 
dig deep and battle back to 
edge out the victory.

Congratulations once 
again, Joseph Junior Am-
brose. You’ve done yourself 
good.

The scORe

 
THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Tuesday, July 11, 2023 at 12:00 PM. 

This meeting is open to the public via Zoom. 

  

Topic: GHURA BOC Meeting, Tuesday, July 11, 2023 

Time: Jul 11, 2023 12:00 PM Guam, Port Moresby 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84037623065?pwd=M3VMMVhMeGxjNFZuNU4zbkdnak82QT09 

Meeting ID: 840 3762 3065 

Passcode: 028107 

Watch YouTube Live Stream 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 

 

AGENDA: 

I. ROLL CALL 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

III. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS BOARD MINUTES – June 20, 2023 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Resolution No. FY2023-017; Resolution commending Ms. Betty C. Bamba, Housing Specialist Supervisor for her 

dedication and contributions to the Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

2. Resolution No. FY2023-018; Resolution to create and approve positions in the Public Housing, Section 8 and 

Procurement Divisions 

3. Resolution No. FY2023-019; Resolution to approve the amendment of position for the Property Site Manager 

4. Resolution No. FY2023-020; Resolution Approving the Annual PHA Plan (FY2024) 

5. Intent to Award for IFB#GHURA-23-13; Renovation of Eight Guma Trankilidat Units 

6. Intent to Award for RFQ#GHURA-12-14-22; Legal Services 

V. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Intent to Award for IFB#GHURA-23-14; MOD; Renovation of Seven (4) AMP 4 Units 

2. Change Order #1 for IFB#GHURA-08-25-2022-AMP4; Replacement of AMP4 Maintenance Shop Extension 

3. Change Order #2 for IFB#GHURA-09-26-2019-CDBG; Construction of a Lighthouse Recovery Center for Women  

                                in Tiyan, Guam 

VI. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

1. Project Updates 

2. Division Updates 

VII. GENERAL DISCUSSION / ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1. HR Item: Executive Management’s Performance Evaluations for: 

• Executive Director, Elizabeth F. Napoli, due on or before July 08, 2023 (Annual Evaluation) 

• Deputy Director, Fernando B. Esteves, due on or before July 28, 2023 (Annual Evaluation) 

2. Next proposed scheduled Board Meeting – Tuesday, July 25, 2023 @ 12:00 p.m.  

VIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

The complete Board packet may be viewed on our website at www.ghura.org. 
 

For more information, please contact Audrey Aguon at 475-1378 and for special accommodations, please contact Chief Planner – 

Designated Section 504 / ADA Coordinator at 475-1322 or TTY 472-3701.   

 

This advertisement was paid for by GHURA. 

The Guam Board of Social Work 

Regular Virtual Board Meeting,

Thursday, July 06, 2023

at 11:00AM.

Join Zoom Meeting

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84422665

531?pwd=TjFHUVFxMEVqRWwrWHgy

bWJpQUcxQT09

Meeting ID: 844 2266 5531

Passcode: 292892

Meeting Agenda:

I Call to order

 A. Confirmation of Public Notice

II Determination of Quorum

III Adoption of Agenda

IV Review and Approval of Minutes

 A. May 18, 2023

V HPLO Administrator’s Report

VI Chairperson’s Report

VII Committee Reports:

 A. Finance & Budget

 B. Statutes, Rules and Forms

VIII Old Business:

 A. Consideration of Applications

 for Licensure

 B. Consideration of Applications

 for Renewal of Licensure

IX New Business:

 A. Consideration of Applications

 for Licensure

 B. Consideration of Applications

 for Renewal of Licensure

X Announcement(s):

 A. Next Meeting: The Guam

 Board of Social Work next

 regularly scheduled board

 meeting, August 03, 2023 at

 11:00AM.

XI Adjournment:

To view the names of the 
applicants being considered go to 

https://guamsocialwork.org

LIVE Streaming link
http://facebook.com/HPLOGuam

This advertisement was paid for
by DPHSS/Health Professional 
Licensing Office-Local Funds

For more information, please 
contact the Board office at 735-

7404/10 thru 12. Persons needing 
telecommunication device for the 
Hearing/Speech Impaired (TDD)

may contact 475-8339

Guam Cancer Trust Fund
Council Meeting

The Guam Cancer Trust Fund Council will hold its

monthly meeting online on 

Thursday, July 06, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. 

 If interested in attending the meeting, please register

with Remylynn Yamanaka at gctf@triton.uog.edu.

AGENDA

• CALL TO ORDER

• REPORT FROM THE CHAIR

• REPORT FROM GCTF PROGRAM MANAGER

• OLD BUSINESS

• NEW BUSINESS 

• OPEN DISCUSSION/INFORMATION

• ADJOURNMENT

GSPN 

A screenshot of JJ Ambrose’s post fight interview Saturday night 
when he announced his retirement from MMA.

MMA
Continued from Page 17





GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 1 of 16 
 

       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 

12:00 P.M., June 20, 2023 

GHURA’s Main Office (via Zoom) 

1st floor, Conference Room, Sinajana  

AGENDA 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

After notice was duly given, pursuant to the Open Government Law of Guam and the Bylaws of the Authority, the Board 
of Commissioners’ regularly scheduled board meeting was called to order at 12:01 P.M., Tuesday, June 20, 2023, at the 
GHURA Sinajana Main Office, 1st floor Conference room, by Chairman Rivera. He indicated that 4 of 6 members of the 
Board of Commissioners were present, representing a quorum and that the meeting would proceed as scheduled. 
 

Viewed 
virtually via 

Zoom:  https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85751987803?pwd=aHFwVU4zdWJhdElMRkFoT2dQOXYrdz09 

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCGqKWU0kOmT0FOLYn48ULag 
 

BOC 
Commissioners 
Attendance 
 

Dr. John Rivera, Chairman                                       Virtual   □             In-Person   
Vacant, Vice Chairman                                             Virtual   □             In-Person  
Frank Ishizaki, Commissioner                                  Virtual               In-Person □   
Anisia Delia, Commissioner                                     Virtual   □             In-Person  
Nate Sanchez, Commissioner                                 Virtual   □             In-Person  
Emilia Rice, Commissioner                                      Virtual   □             In-Person  
Karl Corpus, Resident Commissioner                    Virtual   □             In-Person  
 

Chairman Rivera affirmed the requests of virtual attendance for the GHURA BOC meeting 

GHURA Staff  Elizabeth F. Napoli, Executive Director         Julie Lujan, MIS Administrator              
Fernando B. Esteves, Deputy Director          Sonny Perez, AE Manager  (Ervin Santiago) 
Audrey Aguon, Special Assistant                    Norma San Nicolas   
Frances Danieli, Controller                              Narcissa Ada, AMP1 Manager □ 
Katherine Taitano, RP&E Chief Planner        Gina Cura, AMP2 Manager □ 
Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator    Patrick Bamba, AMP3 Manager □ 
Antonio Camacho, Procurement SMA          Philomena San Nicolas, AMP4 Manager □ 
Pearly Mendiola, GT Manager □                        Jolyn Terlaje   
 
 

Legal Counsel Eliseo M. Florig, GHURA’s Legal Counsel  
 

Public None in person 
None via zoom 
 

 

II. BOARD MEETING PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS 

1st Printing – Tuesday, June 13, 2023 

   2nd Printing – Sunday, June 18, 2023 
   ACKNOWLEDGED BY CHAIRMAN RIVERA 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 2 of 16 
 

 

III. Approval of Previous Board Minutes: GHURA BOC Mtg. Minutes, April 25, 2023 

 

[070/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez motioned to approve the board meeting minutes of 

April 25, 2023, subject to corrections. Commissioner Delia seconded the motion. 

There were no objections. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

IV. New Business: 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

1. Resolution No. FY2023-
016-Resolution 
Commending Ms. 
Alvina C. Castro, 
Program Coordinator 
III, for her dedication 
and contributions to 
the Guam Housing and 
Urban Renewal 
Authority (GHURA) 

[071/23] Executive Director Napoli stated 
the following: 

• June 18, 1990 Ms. Alvina C. Castro 
began her career in the 
unclassified service as the 
Administrative Secretary 

• Sept. 1993, Ms. Castro converted 
to the classified service as 
Administrative Secretary 

• July 25, 1994, she was promoted 
to Wage Compliance Officer 

• March 28, 1996, Ms. Castro was 
reclassified to a Planner II position 
and remained in that position until 
her resignation in April 28, 2000. 

• March 19, 2001, resumed her 
position at GHURA as Planner II, 
but with the 
Modernization/Capital 
Improvement Program 

• October 1, 2007, her request to 
transfer to Research, Planning and 
Evaluation was granted and she 
was promoted to a Program 
Coordinator III on August 22, 
2016. 

• Ms. Alvina Castro has dedicated 
over 31 years of service in support 
of the mission and goals of the 
Guam Housing and Urban 
Renewal Authority. 

• Her efforts have had a direct and 
positive impact on the Guam 
community 

• The GHURA Board of 
Commissioners extended its 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 3 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

recognition and gratitude to Ms. 
Alvina C. Castro commending her 
on her retirement from the 
authority and best wishes on her 
future endeavors. 

• The chairman of the BOC shall 
certify and the Executive Director 
attest the adoption of Resolution 
No. FY2023-016 to Ms. Alvina C. 
Castro.  

• Copies shall be placed in Ms. 
Castro’s personnel file and 
provided to the Governor of 
Guam.  

Chairman Rivera thanked Ms. Castro for all 
her hard work, dedication, and years of 
service.  

Ms. Alvina Castro was given the 
opportunity to thank the staff and 
management at GHURA.  

On behalf of GHURA, Ms. Katherine 
Taitano, Chief Planner, presented Ms. 
Castro with her retirement plaque.  

There were no further discussions.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[072/23] Commissioner Delia moved 
to approve Resolution No. FY2023-
016, commending Ms. Alvina C. 
Castro, Program Coordinator III, for 
her dedication and contributions to 
the Guam Housing and Urban 
Renewal Authority (GHURA). Vice 
Chairman Sanchez seconded the 
motion. There were no objections by 
the other board members. Motion 
passed unanimously.  

2. Intent to Award- 
IFB#GHURA-23-12-
MOD7-AMP1 & 3; 
Renovation of (7) AMP4 
Units 

[073/23] Executive Director Napoli stated 
the following: 

• Bid opening held on May 17, 2023 
at 10AM 

• A total of (5) contractors 
purchased a set of bid 
specifications 

• (2) submitted bids 
o O.H. Construction 

submitted a 15% Bid bond 
and a Base bid #1 at 
$229,000.00. 

o Genesis-Tech Corp.-
submitted a $32,400 Bid 
bond and a Base bid #1 at 
$216,000. 

• The Government estimate was at 
$230,417.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 4 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• The intent of the project is to 
modernize the units per scope of 
work. 

• Modernization of (7) units: 
o (2) units in Agana Heights 
o (2) units in Asan 
o (2) units in Sinajana 
o (1) unit in Merizo 

• Modernization consists of, but not 
limited to:  

o Cleaning building interior 
and common areas 

o Replacing interior and 
exterior doors 

o Carpentry 
o Painting 
o Plumbing 
o Sewer replacement 
o Electrical work 

• Detailed scope of work included in 
board packet 

• AE’s review of bid results 
determined that Genesis-Tech 
Corporation provided the lowest 
responsive and responsible bid. 

• Genesis-Tech Corporation had 
been cleared by the Dept. of Labor 
compliance, OSHA, and EPLS 
Debarred list 

• GHURA requested for board 
approval to Genesis-Tech 
Corporation for the total amount 
of $216,000. 

• Funding available under the 
Capital Fund Program. 

The staff of AE were present via zoom to 
answer questions from the board.  

Vice Chairman Sanchez inquired about 
whether the typhoon had affected the 
scope of work for this project. Mr. Andrew 
Manglona, AE Planner, indicated that 
during an assessment of the various areas, 
there were no comments or complaints 
regarding additional work made by 
theAMP managers. So, there were no 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 5 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

changes made the to the scope of work. 
Vice Chair Sanchez also asked whether 
GHURA was sacrificing quality for quantity 
since Genesis-Tech Corporation’s bid came 
in at $216,000 and the government 
estimate was at $230,417.50. Mr. 
Manglona stated that GHURA will keep 
the scope of work the same and that all 
Genesis-Tech Corporation submittals will 
be the same as their previous submittals 
and that the quality of work will not be 
compromised.  

Chairman Rivera inquired about whether 
Genesis-Tech Corporation had been 
providing satisfactory work for GHURA in 
the past. Mr. Manglona confirmed this.  

There were no further discussions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[074/23] Commissioner Delia moved 
to approve the Intent to Award- 
IFB#GHURA-23-12-MOD7-AMP1 & 3; 
Renovation of (7) AMP4 Units to 
Genesis-Tech Corp in the amount of 
$216,000.00. Vice Chairman Sanchez 
seconded the motion. No objections 
by the other board members. 
Motion passed.  

3. Intent to Award-
IFB#GHURA-23-14-
MOD7-AMP 4; 
Renovation of seven (7) 
AMP 4 units 

[075/23] Executive Director Napoli 

requested to table this item due to a delay 

in the processing of the documents by the 

Department of Labor.  

There were no further discussions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[076/23] Chairman Rivera 

acknowledged the request to table 

this item. 

4. Change Order #1- 
IFB#GHURA-08-25-2022-
AMP4; Replacement of 
AMP4 Maintenance 
Shop Extension 

[077/23] Executive Director Napoli 
requested to table this item due to 
incomplete document submission.  

 

 

[078/23] Chairman Rivera 
acknowledged the request to table 
this item. 

5. Change Order #2-IFB-
GHURA-09-26-2019-
CDBG; Construction of 
the Lighthouse Recovery 
Center for Women in 
Tiyan, Guam 
 

[079/23] Executive Director Napoli 
requested to table this item due to 
continued document review.  

 

 

 

 

[080/23] Chairman Rivera 
acknowledged the request to table 
this item. 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 6 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

V. 6. Resolution No. FY2023-
012-Resolution approving the 
Above-Step Recruitment for 
the Accountant III Position 
(FISCAL Division) 

 

 

 

[081/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Resolution approving the Above-
Step Recruitment for the 
Accountant III position 

• Under the enabling legislation of 
the Authority, Title 12 §5103 GCA, 
“its Board of Commissioners is 
empowered to employ officers, 
technical experts, agents and 
employees, permanent and 
temporary as it may deem 
necessary; and shall determine 
their qualifications, duties, tenure 
and compensations” 

• Title 4 of the Guam Code 
Annotated, “The appointing 
authority or the head of an 
agency, department, or public 
corporation listed in 4 GCA 
§4105(a) may petition the Director 
of Administration, the Judicial 
Council (as to Judicial Branch 
employment) or the agency, 
department or public 
corporation’s governing board or 
commission (as to an agency, 
department or public corporation 
listed in 4GCA §4105(a)), for 
recruitment at a higher step not to 
exceed Step 10, because of 
documented difficulty or 
exceptional qualifications 

• In December 2022, the Board has 
previously approved the above 
step recruitment for Ms. Reyes as 
an Accountant II, however, Ms. 
Reyes was not able to complete 
her probationary period as this 
subsequent higher-level vacancy 
arouse with the accountant III 
position 

•  On 03/28/2023, Ms. Reyes was 
selected to the accountant III  
position and submitted her 
request to Executive Management 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 7 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

requestion the GHURA Board of 
Commissioners review and 
approval of an above the 
minimum step recruitment for the 
classified position of Accountant 
III based on exceptional 
qualifications. 

• Executive Management now seeks 
the GHURA BOC’s approval for an 
above the minimum step 
recruitment for the Accountant III 
position based on recruitment 
difficulty and exceptional 
qualifications of Ms. Reyes. 

• Ms. Reyes’s qualifications include: 
o 9 years in the private and 

military sectors 
o Internal Audit Assurance 

practice 
o Fraud investigation 
o 3-5 years of experience in 

Budget and Business Plans 
o Experience with 

individual, corporate, and 
non-profit organization 
tax 

o Contributing towards 
improving efficiency and 
effectiveness in GHURA’s 
FISCAL Division 

• GHURA Management believes 
that the compensation package of 
salary and benefits to Step 10 is 
fair 

• GHURA respectfully requested 
board approval for the above-step 
recruitment of Ms. Gi Young Kim 
Reyes to Accountant III NG4-10(B), 
$69,610.00 p/a; $33.47 p/hr. 

Dr. Kimberly Bersamin, HR Administrator, 
stated that her presentations before the 
board are only for very critical positions 
such as the engineers and accountants 
that are difficult to fill. The accountant III 
level position will give FISCAL the structure 
for the controller to focus on strategic 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 8 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

planning and the accountant III to focus on 
operations. She added that she hoped to 
finalize and present the next budget to the 
board before October and to make the 
necessary adjustments to stay competitive 
with the Department of Administration.  

Chairman Rivera indicated that GHURA 
should continue to be proactive in 
sustaining critical operations and 
remaining compliant with regulations. He 
added that the board will provide any 
necessary support needed to  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[082/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
moved to approve Resolution No. 
FY2023-012 approving the above-
step recruitment for the Account III 
Position to Ms. Gi Young Kim Reyes, 
Accountant III NG4-10(B). The 
motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Delia. There were no 
objections. Motion passed.  

 

7. Resolution No. FY2023-TA-
001- Resolution authorizing 
off-island travel for the Multi-
Family Service Coordinator 
Conference on August 27-30, 
2023 in National Harbor, 
Maryland 

[083/23] Director Napoli requested to 
table Resolution No. FY2023-TA-001, due 
to item still under review.  

 

 

 

 

 

[084/23] Chairman Rivera 
acknowledged the request to table 
Resolution No. FY2023-TA-001. 

 

8. Resolution No. FY2023-013-
Resolution to adopt the Revision 
to Part 1: Public Housing 
Residential Lease Agreement, 
Section IV- Payment Location 

[085/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Resolution FY2023 -013 is to 
adopt the revision to part: Public 
Housing Residential Lease 
Agreement Section IV payment 
location. 

• The Public Housing (PH) lease is 
the contractual basis of the legal 
relationship between GHURA and 
the tenant. 

• In accordance with 24 CFR 966.3 
and GHURA’s Admissions and 
Continued Occupancy Plan 
(ACOP), Chapter 8-I.D, “the PHA 
must give residents at least (30) 
days advance notice of the 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 9 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

proposed changes and an 
opportunity to comment on the 
changes. The PHA must also 
consider any comments before 
formally adopting a new lease.” 

• February 13, 2023, GHURA issued 
a Notice to Residents of its plans 
to move from manual rental 
coupons for rental payments 
towards electronic on-line rental 
payments effective April 1, 2023 

• March 3, 2023, GHURA issued a 
Notice to PH Residents, Revision 
to Part I: Public Housing 
Residential Lease Agreement, 
Terms and Conditions, IV. 
Payment Location to state,” All 
payments will be made through 
GHURA’s on-line portal. Residents 
will have different payment 
options with assessed fees. Any 
payments with non-sufficient 
funds will be assessed bank 
charges as applicable.” 

• GHURA received a couple of 
responses on the notice issued on 
March 3, 2023 through April 7, 
2023 and corrected the revision to 
state, “All payments must be 
made through GHURA’s on-line 
portal. Residents will have 
different payment options with 
assessed fees. Any rejected 
transactions will be assessed at 
the current fees 

• April 2, 2023, GHURA 
implemented the Rent Payment 
portal under the PH Program in 
which rental payments were 
mandated to be paid 
electronically through MRI 
Software 

• GHURA requests that the BOC 
adopt the revision to Part I: Public 
Housing Residential Lease 
Agreement, Terms and Conditions, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 10 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

IV. Payment Location to state, “All 
payments must be made through 
GHURA’s on-line portal. Residents 
will have different payment 
options with assessed fees. Any; 
rejected transactions will be 
assessed at the current fees.  

 
Chairman Rivera asked that Ms. Philly San 
Nicolas, AMP4 PSM/CFP Manager, share 
some of the challenges that the Public 
Housing program is facing and how the 
issues have been addressed.  
Due to connectivity issues at AMP4 
preventing Ms. Philly San Nicolas to 
continue with the discussion, Deputy 
Director Esteves indicated that the bank 
had given GHURA a 90-day notice that 
they would be moving from the voucher 
payment system to an online payment 
system. GHURA worked very quickly to 
get everyone transitioned into the online 
payment system. Notices were 
distributed. Those who needed 
assistance with the transition received 
help with registration from GHURA AMP 
staff. GHURA had also waived late fees 
on a case-by-case basis for those 
experiencing challenges with working 
with the online payment system.  
 
Commissioner Corpus requested that 
GHURA review the online payment 
processes to confirm that it is running 
smoothly and receipts are being issued. 
Deputy Director Esteves stated that 
payments through the MRI system aren’t 
paid immediately. He added that 
payments are scheduled to be one-to-
three-day transactions, but the money 
will still need to be pulled from the bank 
accounts. Mrs. Frances Danieli, 
Controller, stated that MIS does the 
automatic uploads which includes 
exporting payments from the Rent 
Payment system and importing payments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 11 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

to the housing systems which credits the 
tenant’s account.  
Commissioner Corpus added that the 
online-payment program is a plus for 
people without transportation and are 
struggling.  
 
 

[086/23] Commissioner Corpus 
moved to adopt the revision to Part 
I: Public Housing Residential Lease 
Agreement, Section IV-Payment 
Location. Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Sanchez. No 
objections by the other board 
members. Motion passed.  

 

9. Resolution No. FY2023-014- 
Resolution adopting the 2023 
Public Housing Admissions and 
Continued Occupancy Policy 
(ACOP) 

 

[087/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• 24 CFR 906 requires all Public 
Housing Agencies with a Public 
Housing Program (PHP) to adopt a 
written Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy Policy (ACOP) that 
establishes local policies for the 
administration of the PHP in 
accordance with requirements 
prescribed by the U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) 

• The PH Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy Policy (ACOP) is the 
supporting documentation of the 
PHA Annual Plan in accordance 
with 24 CFR 903 

• March 7 and 27, 2023 GHURA 
issued a Notice of Public Comment 
and Public Hearing and Notice for 
Public Comment and Public 
Hearing Update to the ACOP for 
2022 and 2023 

• May 11, 2023, a Public Hearing 
was held in which GHURA 
received a few comments during 
the public comment period from 
March 7 through May 10, 2023 

• GHURA had revised the current PH 
ACOP to include updated current 
mandates, regulations and policies 
that directly impact the current 
administration of the Public 
Housing Program  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 12 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• The BOC adopt the 2023 Public 
Housing Admissions and 
Continued Occupancy (ACOP) for 
the Public Housing Program.  

Ms. Philly San Nicolas, PSM/CFP Manager, 
stated that the changes made to the 
revisions included changes to the policy 
which gave residents and applicants self-
certification. However, the authority may 
still request for specific documents in the 
event the authority feels that the self-
certification is not legitimate. Another 
change to the policy is the (7) page table 
of contents provided as part of the 
resolution.  

Chairman Rivers requested that Ms. San 
Nicolas highlight some of the biggest 
changes. Ms. San Nicolas stated the 
following: 

o Residents/applicants can now 
provide a self-certification stating 
homelessness 

o Less paperwork between 
resident/applicant and GHURA 

o Children turning 18 years old will 
not be required to obtain GPD 
clearance until the next annual 
certification 

o GHURA must give Residents 
paying flat rate rent, at least (2) 
years before they are requested 
to move out. Option to keep the 
resident will result in the resident 
paying the market rate and no be 
given utility allowance. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[088/23] Vice Chairman Sanchez 
moved to approve Resolution No. 
FY2023-014 adopting the 2023 Public 
Housing Admissions and Continued 
Occupancy Policy (ACOP). Motion 
was seconded by Commissioner 
Corpus 

10. Resolution No. FY2023-015-  

Resolution Approving the  
Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five-
Year Action Plan (CFP) Five-Year  
Action Plan (2023-2027) 
 
 

 

[089/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• Resolution approving the Capital 
Fund Program (CFP) Five-Year 
Action Plan (2023-2027) 

• Section 9 of the U.S. Housing Act 
of 1937 is the statutory basis for 
the CFP as created as part of the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 13 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 Quality Housing and Work 
Responsibility Act (QHWRA) of 
1988 

• The PH CFP provides financial 
assistance to public housing 
agencies (PHAs) to make physical 
improvements to the PH stock. 

• The CFP Five-Year Action Plan 
describes the capital 
improvements to be undertaken 
within the 5-year period. The 
capital improvements are 
necessary activities to ensure 
long-term physical and social 
viability of the PHA’s PH 
developments. 

• The goals and objectives of the 
CFP 5-Year Action Plan are 
consistent with Guam’s 5-Year 
Consolidated Plan, which 
identifies and prioritizes the 
housing and community 
development needs of Guam.  

• This Plan was prepared in 
accordance with 24 CFR Part 905 

• The GHURA BOC of GHURA 
approves the CFP Five-Year Action 
Plan 2023-2027 

 

Ms. Philly San Nicolas indicated that the 
highlighted projects such as the 
replacements of doors, typhoon shutters, 
unit insulations, and various other projects 
were a part of a proposed five-year plan 
with estimated costs. Any project listed in 
year (5) may be moved to year (1) should 
there be an urgency for completion. 

Chairman Rivera asked how much of the 
highlighted projects are completed within 
the projected timeline.  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 14 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 

Ms. San Nicolas stated that GHURA tries to 
obligate as many projects as possible to 
give the engineering division time to 
recuperate and work the other projects. 
She added that they would try to obligate 
75% in the first year and 25% in the 
remaining (2) years.  

 

 
[090/23] Commissioner Delia moved 
to approve the Resolution Approving 
the Capital Fund Program (CFP) Five-
Year Action Plan (CFP) Five-Year 
Action Plan (2023-2027). Vice 
Chairman Sanchez seconded the 
motion. There were no objections by 
the other board members. Motion 
passed.  
 
 

V. Executive Director’s   

Report 

1. Project Updates 

2. Division Updates 

[091/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following updates:  

• the executive report will include 
updates on GHURA due to 
Typhoon Mawar 

• GHURA Operations post Mawar: 
o Typhoon recovery at 

GHURA ongoing 
o Main office and AMPs 

have resumed regular 
hours 

o Challenges: rolling power 
outages, low water 
pressure, and unstable 
connectivity 

o Despite challenges, all 
staff continues to provide 
services 

o Communication with 
Honolulu HUD offices is 
ongoing 

o Long-term and short-term 
housing needs discussions 
with Adelup continue 

o HUD and GHURA are 
working together to assist 
in the disaster recovery 
efforts 

o GHURA will also continue 
to move forward with 
current projects 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 15 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

• GHURA to participate in the 
Governor’s Summer Youth 
Employment Program 

• Rebecca Borja, HUD Honolulu 
Field Office to be on Guam form 
June 26-30 to conduct the FY2023 
Home Program Monitoring.  

• US Department of Agriculture’s 
West Region Field Operations 
Division, Multi-Family Housing 
Rural Development Section is 
planning to be on Guam in July for 
a supervisory visit and compliance 
at Guma Trankilidat. 

• Deputy Director Esteves added 
the following data on damage 
assessment: 

o Section 8 has reached out 
to about 900 tenants.  

o All 755 PH units were 
inspected- 481 units 
sustained no damages; 
309 units sustained very 
minor damages. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[092/23] No action taken. 

 
 
 
 

VI. General Discussions/ 

Announcements 

[093/23] Director Napoli stated the 
following: 

• On May 9, 2023, pursuant to the 
authority under the Organic Act of 
Guam and local law, 12 GCA 
§5103(g), Governor Leon Guerrero 
appointed Mr. Nathanal P. 
Sanchez as the Vice Chairperson, 
Board of Commissioners Guam 
Housing and Urban Renewal 
Authority. 

Chairman Rivera and members of the BOC 
congratulated the newly appointed Vice 
Chairman Sanchez. 

Vice Chairman Sanchez thanked Governor 
Leon Guerrero and Lt. Governor Tenorio 
for the appointment and opportunity to 
continue to do his best with the board of 
commissioners and to support the great 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



GHURA BOC Board Meeting Minutes of June 20, 2023                                                                                     Page 16 of 16 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

work of the staff and management of the 
Guam Housing and Urban Renewal 
Authority. 

There were no further discussions.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

[094/23] No action taken. 

VII. Adjournment 

 

 

[095/23] Chairman Rivera stated that the 
next proposed BOC meeting was set for 
Tuesday, July 11, 2023, at 12PM. He 
reminded the board that a notification will 
be forwarded to all members regarding 
their availability on the proposed date. 

There were no further discussions. 

[096/23] Commissioner Delia moved 
to adjourn the BOC meeting of June 
20, 2023. Vice Chairman Sanchez 
seconded the motion. Meeting 
adjourned at 1:40PM.  

 

SEAL 

 

              ______________________________ 
        Elizabeth F. Napoli 
        Board Secretary/Executive Director 
   
        Date __________________________ 

    



GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN RENEWAL AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. FY2023-017 

 
Moved by:           Seconded by:      
 

RESOLUTION COMMENDING MS. BETTY C. BAMBA, HOUSING SPECIALIST SUPERVISOR, 
FOR HER DEDICATION AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE GUAM HOUSING AND URBAN 
RENEWAL AUTHORITY (GHURA) 

 
WHEREAS,     prior to joining the GHURA team, Ms. Betty C. Bamba worked for the Department of Revenue 

and Taxation as a private secretary in the unclassified service for almost four (4) years, from 
1979 thru 1982, and 

 
WHEREAS, in January 1987, Ms. Bamba started her employment with GHURA as the private secretary to 

the Executive Director and later reclassified to an Executive Secretary on November 1987, and   
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Bamba converted to the classified service as a Program Coordinator II between the 

Research, Planning and Evaluation and Community Development Divisions respectively, until 
her resignation on March 2000; and 

    
WHEREAS, a year later in July 2001, Ms. Bamba returned to the GHURA team as a Housing Assistant 

Program Specialist for the Section 8 division, and was subsequently promoted in June 2006 as 
a Contract Control Analyst; and 

 
WHEREAS, in February 2007, Ms. Bamba was reclassified to the position she holds today, as a Housing 

Specialist Supervisor; and  
 
WHEREAS, in total, Ms. Bamba dedicated over 27 years of service in support of the mission and goals of 

the Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, her efforts and supervision in the Section 8 division had a direct and positive impact to our 

island community, housing hundreds of families during her tenure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners extends its recognition and gratitude to Ms. Betty C. Bamba, 

commending her on her retirement from the Authority, and extending best wishes on her future 
endeavors; now, therefore, be it 

 
RESOLVED, that the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners shall certify, and the Executive Director 

attest the adoption hereof Resolution No. FY2023-017, and that thereafter shall be presented to 
Ms. Betty C. Bamba, whereby a copy shall be placed in her official personnel file, and a copy 
provided to the Governor of Guam. 

 
IN REGULAR BOARD MEETING, SINAJANA, GUAM – JULY 11, 2023 
PASSED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTES: 

AYES:                
NAYS:                
ABSENT:             

ABSTAINED:    

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 

correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the 

Guam Housing and Urban Renewal Authority 

Board of Commissioners on July 11, 2023. 

 

(SEAL)                                                             ________________________________ 
ELIZABETH F. NAPOLI 

Board Secretary / Executive Director  

 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 1 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 2 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 3 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 4 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 5 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 6 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 7 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 8 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 9 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 10 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 11 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 12 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 13 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 14 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 15 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 16 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 17 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 18 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 19 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 20 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 21 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 22 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 23 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 24 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 25 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 26 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 27 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 28 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 29 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 30 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 31 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 32 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 33 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 34 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 35 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 36 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 37 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 38 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 39 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 40 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 41 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 42 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 43 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 44 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 45 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 46 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 47 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 48 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 49 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 50 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 51 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 52 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 53 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 54 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 55 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 56 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 57 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 58 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 59 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 60 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 61 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 62 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 63 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 64 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 65 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 66 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 67 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 68 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 69 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 70 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 71 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 72 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 73 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 74 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 75 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 76 of 77



 
Board Meeting of July 11, 2023 

 
PAGE 77 of 77


